
 

YOUR community. YOUR voice. 
 
Your Ward Councillors are: 
 
Councillor Luis Fonseca 
Councillor Rob Wann 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Thurnby Lodge Youth & Community Centre, 
Thurncourt Road, LE5 2NG 
On Monday, 15 July 2013 

Starting at 6:00 pm 
 

The meeting will be in two parts 

 
6:00 pm – 6:15 pm 

  
Meet your Councillors and local 
service providers dealing with:- 

 

• City Warden Service 

• Police Issues in the Ward 

• Community Meeting Budgets 
and Enquiries 

6:15 pm onwards 
  

Get involved in your area and 
planning for the future. There will be 
presentations and discussions on: 

  

• Safety in the Home 

• Housing Issues 

• Highways & Transport Issues 

• City Warden Service  

• Police Issues 

• Ward Community Budget 

  



 

 
  
  

Making Meetings Accessible to All 
  
WHEELCHAIR   
Meetings are held in a variety of community venues. We will only hold 
meetings in venues where there is suitable access for wheelchairs. If you 
have any concerns about accessing a venue by wheelchair, please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer on the details provided. 
  
BRAILLE / AUDIO TAPE – CD / TRANSLATION 
If you require this agenda or a particular part of it to be translated or 
provided on audio tape, the Democratic Services Officer can organise this 
for you (production times will depend on equipment facility availability). In 
certain cases, subject to the agreement of the local Councillors, 
translation facilities can be provided at the meeting.  
  

  
  

INFORMATION FAIR 
  

You can raise matters of concern, give opinions and find out information which may 
be of use about the following:- 

 

• City Warden Service 

• Police Issues in the Ward  

• General Council Matters and Other Issues 

 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 
  
 



 

 

The first part of the agenda covers formal items which the 
Councillors need to deal with to ensure that regulations on 
holding meetings are kept to. 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR  
 

 

 Members are asked to elect a Chair for the meeting.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 The first main item on the agenda is Declarations of Interest where Councillors 
have to say if there is anything on the agenda they have a personal interest in. 
For example if a meeting was due to discuss a budget application put forward 
by a community group and one of the Councillors was a member of that group, 
they would not be able to take part in the decision on that budget application. 
 
Councillors are asked to declare any interest they may have in the business on 
the agenda, and/or indicate that Section 106 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 applies to them.  
 

 

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

Appendix A 

 The minutes of the Thurncourt Community Meeting held on 26 March 2013 are 
attached and Members are asked to confirm them as a correct record.  
 

 

This next part of the agenda covers items where input from 
you on issues that affect your community is welcomed. 
 
5. SAFETY IN THE HOME  
 

 

 Officers from Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service have been invited to the 
meeting to talk about home safety.  
 

 

6. HOUSING ISSUES  
 

 

 Housing officers have been invited to give an update on housing issues in the 
Ward.  
 

 

7. HIGHWAYS ISSUES   



 

 

 Highways officers have been invited to give an update on highways issues in 
the Ward.  
 

 

8. PRESENTATION ON THE THURNBY LODGE 
COMMUNITY FUN DAY  

 

 

 Mr Allan Gratrix will be present to talk about the Thurnby Lodge Community 
Fun Day.  
 

 

9. CITY WARDEN UPDATE  
 

 

 The City Warden will give an update on issues in Thurncourt Ward.  
 

 

10. POLICE ISSUES UPDATE  
 

 

 To receive an update on Police issues in the area.  
 

 

11. WARD COMMUNITY BUDGET  
 

 

 Councillors are reminded that they will need to declare any interest they may 
have in budget applications, and/or indicate that Section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them. 
 
a) The Members Support Officer will provide an update on the Ward 

Community budget for 2012/13;  
 

b) The following grant applications are submitted for consideration:- 
 
Application 1 
 
Applicant: Thurnby Lodge Community Association Chairman (Mr T Taylor) 
 
Project: Taxi Scheme 
 
Amount Requested:   £1,500 
 
Summary: 
 
This application is made for the continuation of the taxi assistance scheme, which has 
been running for a few years. 
 
 
Application 2 
 
Applicant: Mrs June Dyson 



 

 
Project: Wednesday Club Outing/Meal 
 
Amount Requested:    
 

Item 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimate/ 
Actual 
cost? 

Request 
to Ward 
Meeting 

(£) 

30 meals @ £8 per head   £240 

Transport    £200 

Total   £440 

 
Summary: 
 
It is intended to arrange transport to take the group for a meal on at least one 
occasion.  The date and location will depend on the amount of grant approved. 
 
There are 30 members of the group, many of whom have mobility and other medical 
problems.  As a result, specialist transport could be needed, (for example, a vehicle 
with a tail lift). 
 
 
Application 3 
 
Applicant: Mrs June Worley 
 
Project: Friday Bingo Club 
 
Amount Requested:    
 

Item 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimate/ 
Actual 
cost? 

Request 
to Ward 
Meeting 

(£) 

Purchase of bingo books and 
improve the financial incentive 

to take part 

  £200 

Total   £200 

 
Summary: 
 
This application is for assistance in buying the tickets and attracting new members. 
 
Attendance varies between 20 and 30 people, but the organisers want to attract new 



 

members. 
 
The community centre is located on an outer estate, so people have limited 
opportunities to travel elsewhere in order to play bingo. 
 
 
Application 4 
 
Applicant: Mrs Brenda Ayres 
 
Project: Tuesday Bingo Club 
 
Amount Requested:    
 

Item 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimate/ 
Actual 
cost? 

Request 
to Ward 
Meeting 

(£) 

Purchase of bingo books and 
help towards raffle prizes 

200  200 

Total   £200 

 
Summary: 
 
Tuesday night bingo has been held at the community centre for a number of years.  It 
is attended by 35 – 40 people who are mostly, but not exclusively, elderly. 
 
In addition to cash prizes, a raffle is held with prizes such as tea and sugar, eggs and 
bacon, cans of soup, or sweets. 
 
 
Application 5 
 
Applicant: S Tattersall and S Taylor 
 
Project: Thurnby Lodge and Willowbrook Play Scheme 
 
Amount Requested:    
 

Item 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimate/ 
Actual 
cost? 

Request 
to Ward 
Meeting 

(£) 

Resources  £600 Estimate  

Consumables  £200 Estimate  
£1,500 



 

Staffing  £2,000 Estimate  
 

Total £2,800  £1,500 

 
Summary: 
 
This is a summer playscheme for local community schools.  It will be held at Thurnby 
Lodge Primary School for two weeks from 29 July 2013 from 9.00 am to 12.00 noon. 
 
The playscheme will be open to children aged 5 – 11 years old. 
 
A varied timetable will be offered, including art, cookery, sport, dance and drama, 
ceramics, litter picking (organised by the City Wardens) and Thurnby’s Got Talent.  
Use also will be made of local facilities, (parks and shops). 
 
Consumables will include milk and fruit for the children. 
 
In previous years there has been a high demand for places, but due to the funding 
available, only a limited number could be offered.  This application is made to enable 
places to be offered to both Thurnby Lodge Primary School and Willowbrook Primary 
School. 
 
The remainder of the cost will be met through Thurnby Lodge Primary School’s pupil 
premium fund. 
 
 
Application 6 
 
Applicant: Thurnby Rangers Football Club 
 
Project: Assistance with Running Costs 
 
Amount Requested:    
 

Item 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimate/ 
Actual 
cost? 

Request 
to Ward 
Meeting 

(£) 

Football strips for two teams £400 x 2  £800 

Goal Nets £350  £350 

Footballs  £200  £200 

Repairs to Stand and Seating £500  £500 

Total £1,850  £1,850 

 
Summary: 



 

 
Thurnby Rangers has been in existence for over 30 years, with three teams running. 
 
Considerable expense and commitment has ensured the maintenance of a first rate 
facility, but on-going costs make it extremely difficult to continue to deliver this service. 
 
Vandalism is an issue, with the stands and seating being damaged and repair and 
maintenance being needed regularly.  This meant that equipment replacement, such 
as football strips, goal nets and footballs, is neglected, although it is important that 
they are renewed when necessary. 
 
The Club maintains the football ground, which is leased from the City Council, and has 
done this to a very high standard. 
 
 
Application 7 
 
Applicant: JumPin Jacqs Children and Youth Venture (Mrs Jacquelyne Clayton-

Naute) 
 
Project: The Generation Games  
 
Amount Requested:    
  
This is a joint application to Thurncourt Community Meeting, Coleman Community 
Meeting and Spinney Hills Community Meeting. 
 
 
 

Item 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimate/ 
Actual 
cost? 

Request 
to Ward 
Meeting 

(£) 
Publicity Resources 
1. Poster design ALL IN £40 
2. posters/printing X200 A3 posters @£1each  
3. Batch of 100 A4 posters @ £45 X2= £90  
4. Batch of 100 flyers @£30 X2=£60   
5. Batch X100 A5 programs@£30 X2=£60 
6. 7Xs A4 volunteer badge sheets @ 43p = 
3.01p 
8. 1 banner @ £75 
 
9. 4Xs Lexmark ink print cartridges £60 
10. Photographer/videographer - Travel + 
Photography + Event Video recording @ 150 
All in 

 

40 

200 

90 

60 

60 

3 
 
 

75 

 
 

60 
 

150 

 

40 

200 

90 

60 

60 

3 
 

75 

 
 

60 
 

150 

 
 
 
 
 

738 



 

Games Activity Resources 
1. Footballs, nets, marker pens, clip boards, 
pens, name tags, competitor refreshments. 
2. 200 medallions @ £1.20 Xs 200 = £240 
3. 200 medallion ribbons @ £1 Xs 200 = £200 
4. 8 metres ceremony Ribbon @ £1 per meter 
= £8 
5. Gamesmakers T Shirts  and Staff @ 25 Xs 
£9 
6. “Gamesmakers” Travel Expenses / 
Refreshments:  = 20 xs Gamesmakers @ £5 
Travel & £10 refreshments 

 
400 

 
200 
150 

8 
 

224 
 
 

300 

 
400 

 
200 
150 

8 
 

224 
 
 

300 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1282 

Games Staff 
1. Leicester City Council - Saffron Lane Sports 
Stadium Staff Xs 2  @ £26phr Xs 10hrs   
2. Saffron Lane Sports Stadium Race Starters 
- Xs 2 @ £10 Xs 6hrs 
3. Jumpinjacqs Event Organiser - £20phr xs 
10hrs 
4. Gamesmaker Coordinator - £20phr xs 10hrs 

 
520 

 
60 

 
200 

 
200 

 
520 

 
60 

 
200 

 
200 

 
 
 

980 

Total £3,000 £3,000 

£3,000 
(ie, 

£1,000 
from 
each 
ward) 

 
Summary: 
 
The project seeks to increase inter-generation activity through sport by emulating and 
preserving the spirit and legacy of the 2012 London Olympic Games.   
 
The Generation Games (TGG) is open to anyone across Leicester city, therefore 
attracting people from all parts of the city, both young and old.  The organisers will 
publicise the event through print, social media, etc to maximise awareness.  
 
A variety of sports activity will be used, particularly promoting Olympic types, such as 
running, jumping or throwing and traditional games such as three legged race, egg 
and spoon, sack races, etc to ensure the widest participation. By engaging and 
integrating people from diverse backgrounds it is hoped to break down 
misconceptions and build confidence about/between people.  
 
Potential participants have told the organisers that the TGG would help them to take 
up exercise and encourage their children to do the same and bring together different 
communities. Many of them had no opportunity to see or visit the Olympic Park, due 
largely to affordability.  While the event cannot take the place of the actual Olympics it 
is a step to enable ordinary people into creating an Olympic ambiance and community 
belonging.  
 
Consultation on the project concept has been held with officers at Leicester City 



 

Council (Saffron Lane Sports Stadium) and the proposal was well received.  Officers 
offered and agreed to support the TGG with their expertise, staff and experience of 
organising and delivering athletic events both at a small and large scale, ensuring that 
the proposal is planned, promoted and delivered successfully.  
 
While there may be a competitive nature to the concept, particularly between the 
participants, the event promotes activity in a safe and fun-filled environment, with 
professional input from staff at Saffron Lane Sports Stadium.  
 
The project will provide:  
 
-   “ FREE” 10 hours of activity including set up and close down 
-     Hold an opening and closing ceremony 
-     Engage 200 people from council wards predominantly from Coleman, Spinney 

Hills, Evington, Charnwood (where the majority of Jumpinjacqs beneficiaries 
reside) and Aylestone 

-    Taster sessions in athletics particularly promoting Olympic style events  
-    Engage 20 Gamesmakers (i.e. volunteers) 
-    Deliver activities through expert support from Leicester City Council Saffron Lane 

Sports Stadium Staff 
-    Register, Monitor the take up of the event and  evaluate the success of the TGG 
 
It is proposed to hold the event on Saturday 24 August 2013, at the Saffron Lane 
Sports Stadium situated at Saffron Lane, Leicester LE2 7NQ.  
 
The total funding required is £3,940.40.  The sum of £799.40 has already been 
received, reducing the overall sum required to £3,141.  (The funding that has been 
received is from Leicester City Council Sport Fund, £300, for Saffron Lane Sport 
Stadium and PA system hire, and Leicestershire and Rutland Community Games 
Cash Fund, £499.40, for St. Johns Ambulance and various Opening Ceremony 
activities.)   The balance of £141 will be met by the organisers. 
 
 
Application 8 
 
Applicant: Mrs Wendy Biddles 
 
Project: Day Outing for the “Chit Chat” Club to  a Place of Interest 
 
Amount Requested:    
 

Item 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimate/ 
Actual 
cost? 

Request 
to Ward 
Meeting 

(£) 

Coach Hire £500 Actual  £500 

Total £500  £500 

 



 

Summary: 
 
The Chit Chat Club has 25 members, who are aged over 60. 
 
It is proposed to have a coach trip to the coast or a place of interest in July or August.  
The trip will be for members of the Club and other people from the community who are 
interested. 
 
 
Application 9 
 
Applicant: G J Merrington 
 
Project: Provide Football Equipment 
 
Amount Requested:    
 

Item 
Cost 
(£) 

Estimate/ 
Actual 
cost? 

Request 
to Ward 
Meeting 

(£) 

Assorted Training Equipment £100  £100 

Total £100  £100 

 
Summary: 
 
This application is for funding to provide worn out kit, which includes footballs, training 
poles, cones and hurdles. 
 
Training takes place every Sunday on Willowbrook Park and the club is based at 
Thurnby Lodge Community Centre.  All sessions are open to everyone and no charge 
is made. 
 
 
c) The following grant applications have been approved under the Council’s 

fast track procedure and are submitted for information:- 
 
Application 11 
 
Applicant: Rosemary Goodman and Vinny Cooper 
 
Project: 55th Community Gardens and Allotments 
 
Amount Approved:   £500 
 
Summary: 
 
A community garden is being established at 70 Nursery Road, (formerly known as the 



 

scout hut).  Various things are needed, including building materials, water butts, 
gardening tools and a shed in which to store them, a greenhouse and trees, plants 
and seeds. 
 
The grant approved was for the purchase of a lawnmower and a shed. 
 
 
Application 12 
 
Applicant: JumPin Jacqs Children and Youth Venture (Mrs Jacquelyne Clayton-

Naute) 
 
Project: “Football Coming Home” 
 
Amount Approved:   £500 
 
Summary: 
 
This was a joint application to Thurncourt Community Meeting and Charnwood 
Community Meeting, (£500 from each ward). 
 
The Project will provide:  
 
- 26hrs of football activity 
- Full team kit  
- Practice Footballs 
- Training Bibs/Cones and Whistles 
 
9 young people resident within the Charnwood Ward and 7 within the Thurncourt 
Ward will benefit from this project.   
 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Help us to make improvements! 
 
Please help us to improve Community Meetings by filling in an 
Evaluation sheet to let us know what you thought of the meeting. Thank 
you. 
 

 



 

 

For further information contact 
  
Elaine Baker, Democratic Services Officer or Carine Cardoza, Members Support 
Officer, Leicester City Council, 7th Floor, Block B, New Walk Centre, Welford Place, 
Leicester LE1 6ZG 
 
Phone 0116 229 8806 / 0116 252 6089 
Fax      0116 229 8819 
 
Elaine.Baker@leicester.gov.uk / Carine.Cardoza@leicester.gov.uk  
 
www.leicester.gov.uk/communitymeetings 

 



This page is left blank intentionally.



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Your Community, Your Voice 
 

Record of Meeting and Actions 
 
6:00 pm, Tuesday, 26 March 2013 
Held at: Ocean Road Community Centre, Thurnby Lodge 
 
Councillors in Attendance 
 

Councillor Luis Fonseca 
 

 

Appendix A



 

 

INFORMATION SHARING – ‘INFORMATION FAIR’ SESSION 
 

Information on the following topics was available in the room:- 
 

• City Warden Service 
 

• Police Issues 
 

• Ward Councillors and general enquiries 
 
 
 
At the conclusion of this informal session members of the public were invited to take 
their seats and take part in the formal session of the meeting. 

 
 

 
 

34. ELECTION OF CHAIR  
 
Councillor Fonseca was elected as Chair for the meeting. 
 
 
35. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Trevor Taylor. 
 
 
36. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Fonseca declared an interest in application 9 of agenda item 11, “Ward 
Community Budget 2012/13”, as he was a governor at Willowbrook Primary School. 
 
In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, this interest was not considered 
so significant that it was likely to prejudice Councillor Fonseca’s judgement of the 
public interest.  He was not, therefore, required to withdraw from the meeting. 
 
 
37. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of Thurncourt Community Meeting held on 28 January 2013 were 
agreed as a correct record. 
 
 
38. INFORMATION ITEM - UPDATE ON THE RELOCATION OF CURRENT 

USERS OF THE RAVEN CENTRE  
 
Steve Goddard, Head of Community Services, gave the following update:- 
 



 

 

“As reported at the previous Ward Community Meeting the overwhelming 
response was that the 55th Scout Hut would be leased to the Forgotten Estates 
Group and the Raven Youth Centre be leased to the As-Salaam Trust. After the 
completion of the negotiations the Head Terms of the Lease agreements for both 
buildings have now been signed. 
 
The 55th had its Open Day on Saturday and the Council will continue to support 
the Forgotten Estates Group with advice and guidance as and when required. 
 
The As-Salaam Trust will be leasing the Raven Centre from Monday 1st April 
2013.  
 
The Youth sessions will be unaffected and they will still meet on Monday, 
Tuesday and Thursday and will move to the community centre. There will be 
some refurbishment work that has been agreed in consultation with the young 
people currently attending the youth sessions. This will provide additional 
facilities for the young people and the community to access including a 
kitchenette in the annex. The Council will continue to work with the young people 
to make sure they are involved with the changes to the building. 
 
The Community Book Loan Scheme will be relocated to the Lounge within the 
Community Centre and will be more easily accessible for local residents to bring 
and share reading material. 
 
The Bowls Club will continue to use the Raven Centre until the outdoor season 
begins in May and it is proposed that they will use the Raven from October for 
the indoor season. 
 
The other two groups currently using the Raven have been relocated within the 
Community Centre and they will start their new sessions after Easter. 
 
The Council is aware of the feelings of local residents that the Raven Centre 
would be lost by the local community. The Council has negotiated a clause 
within the lease agreement with the As-Salaam Trust to ensure that the 
community can continue to have access to the building and As-Salaam have 
confirmed that The Raven will continue to be available for hire to the community. 
 
The Council will continue to provide support to the Thurnby Lodge Community 
Centre and work with the Community Association to develop the facility.” 

 
The following concerns were then raised during debate on this item:- 
 

• Why were the young people moved out of The Raven? 
 

• Information had been circulated locally that the Bowls group would be moved to 
the Manor.  It was understood that this information was given on good authority. 

 
In response, Steve Goddard confirmed that:- 
 



 

 

o Agreement had been reached between the Council and the Bowls group 
about the facilities it would use.  The group would continue to use The 
Raven until 2 May 2013.  It would then be outdoors for the bowls season and 
would return to The Raven in October; and 
 

o Meetings had been held with the three groups that would be relocated from 
The Raven to discuss this. 

 
In reply, residents stressed the importance of honouring the commitment that the 
Bowls group would return to The Raven in October. 

 

• The Community Association would be affected by this the most, so why was it 
not consulted before?   
 

• It was being said that the library would be moved to the 55th Scout Hut and it had 
been stated that a selection of books would be placed in the lounge there.  This 
was not a library and no-one would feel comfortable there.  No notice had been 
taken of the Community Association on this, as a result of which the Council had 
let down its longest standing tenants. 
 

There would be protests over the proposals for the library, including a petition to 
the Council, as residents were not prepared to lose their library. 
 

• How was the Council able to justify giving away a facility to a group that was not 
from the area and which did not integrate? 
 

• Problems were being experienced with parking at The Raven.  For example, on 
21 March 2013 paths and the bus route had been blocked by parked vehicles 
and other vehicles were parked on the grass.  Photographs of this were 
available. 
 

Steve Goddard advised the meeting that the Council was aware of these issues.  
Discussions had been held between the City Mayor and officers and with the 
Community Association about use of the car park.  As a result, Council traffic 
officers had been asked to look at the parking provision and access to it.   
 
The Community Association would be advised of the outcome of this.  In the 
meantime, work would continue on addressing the situation. 
 

• As As-Salaam was a religious group, it would be holding events at different times 
of the year, so the Bowls group would have to go elsewhere at those times. 
 

• The Raven was a youth centre and belonged to the community, but the 
community would not be able to use it. 
 

• Account had not been taken of the views of people who had lived in the area all 
their lives and had fought over the years to bring facilities in to the area.  This 
included the hard work that had been done to improve youth provision in the 
area. 
 



 

 

• An inventory of the equipment in The Raven was needed, as some of it belonged 
to the Community Association and needed to be shared with other facilities in the 
area. 
 

Steve Goddard acknowledged this and advised that:- 
 
o The Council’s Youth Services were helping with the removal of equipment.  

They also would help with moving the Community Association’s equipment. 
 

o The bowls mats would be stored in Thurnby Lodge Youth and Community 
Centre. 
 

• The Council should hold proper discussions and not “rail-road” people in to 
things.   
 

• As-Salaam wanted to be involved in the community, so should allow the users of 
The Raven to stay there.  A lease had not been signed yet, so why could other 
arrangements not be made for the time that As-Salaam wanted to use the 
centre?  This would enable the centre to stay in community use.   
 
In response, Steve Goddard confirmed that a lease had been signed and would 
take effect from 1 April 2013. 
 

• When As-Salaam had used the Ocean Road Community Centre many problems 
had been experienced, (for example, with cars parking around the Centre, car 
doors slamming and children running about in the road).  This had gone on for a 
year. 
 
In response, Steve Goddard reminded the meeting that As-Salaam had used the 
Ocean Road Community Centre for a few weeks, not a year. 

 
During this discussion, concern also was raised that there appeared to be racism in 
the views being expressed about As-Salaam’s use of The Raven, which was 
detrimental to the debate. 
 
Due to general disorder in the meeting, the Chair declared the debate on this item 
closed. 
 
 
39. HOW TO PAY RENT AND COUNCIL TAX TO THE COUNCIL  
 
Mike Watson, Income Collection Manager with the City Council’s Housing Services, 
explained that the Welfare Reform Act would come in to force on 1 April 2013.  This 
was a government initiative over which the Council had no control and would make 
changes to the way benefits were calculated and paid. 
 
Mike Watson explained that there were various ways in which to pay rent and 
Council Tax to the Council:- 
 

• Direct Debit. 



 

 

Rent could be paid on the 1st and 15th of each month. 
Council Tax could be paid on the 1st, 10th, 20th and 28th of each month. 
Direct debits could be cancelled at any time. 
 

• On-line. 
Payments could be made on-line with cards such as Switch, Solo, or Delta.  The 
rent account or Council Tax account numbers were needed to make the 
payment. 
Computers could be accessed at libraries and housing offices. 

 

• PayPoint. 
Payments could be made in cash at any outlet with a PayPoint sign.  These 
payments could be made whenever wanted at no extra cost to the payee. 
 

• Over the telephone by debit or credit card. 
 

• At any branch of the Post Office in the country. 
 

• By post. 
Payments by post could only be made by cheque. 
 

• By Standing Order. 
The form for this could be obtained from the Council or the Council’s website.  
Five days needed to be allowed before the due date of the payment to set up the 
Standing Order. 

 
People also could open a Credit Union Budget Account (CUBA).  These were 
transactional accounts that credit unions across the East Midlands had come 
together to create.  Benefits would be paid directly in to an account and then rent 
and Council Tax payments were taken out first.  Anyone operating a CUBA had 
access to all of the services offered by credit unions, such as budgeting advice and 
low interest loans. 
 
The Council would pay the £10 joining fee for a CUBA and the 75p transaction 
charge for rent payments. 
 
If a rent payment was missed, a reminder letter would be sent.  If applicable, the 
Council would enter in to an affordable agreement with anyone owing rent and could 
provide a free “benefits health check”.  However, if people continued not to pay, the 
Council would take them to court.  As a last resort, a bailiff warrant would be 
obtained to enforce eviction.  Anyone evicted for non-payment of rent would be 
considered to be intentionally homeless. 
 
Council Tax usually was paid over ten months, but a request could be made to 
spread the payments over twelve months.  If a payment of Council Tax was missed, 
a reminder letter would be sent, with a further letter being sent if a second payment 
was missed.  After the third missed payment, the Council would take action to 
recover the money owed, including action through the courts.  
 



 

 

The date that the Council received a payment was important.  It recommended that 
payments be made five days before the due date, to avoid any problems arising. 
 
If people could not afford to pay their Council Tax or housing rent, the Council 
recommended that they consider moving to smaller accommodation.  In some cases, 
it could be cheaper to move in to private accommodation.  However, it was 
recognised that this could be difficult to do. 
 
Some help was available in the form of discretionary payments for both housing rent 
and Council Tax.  These payments could be made in the short-term while alternative 
accommodation was being sought.  However, there were limited funds available for 
this. 
 
Although the Council did not recommend it, the government was promoting the idea 
of taking in a lodger to help cover costs, as some of the income from a lodger could 
be kept before deductions were made from benefits.  People considering doing this 
needed to exercise caution and the Council was producing information and an 
advice leaflet on this.  As an alternative, non-dependents in the household could be 
asked to increase their contribution to household costs. 
 
In reply to a question from a resident, Mike Watson undertook to find out how much 
Council Tax owed to the City Council was unpaid. 
 
In reply to further questions, Mike Watson explained that:- 
 
o These reforms only applied to working age adults; 

 
o The regulations contained provision for use of a separate bedroom by the 

following people:- 
 

- a severely disabled child, who would disturb the sleep of anyone they shared 
a room with; 
 

- foster parents who had had a child placed with them within the last 12 
months; 
 

- an adult serving in the armed forces; 
 
However, households falling in to these categories still could be affected by the 
“bedroom tax”.  For example, if a family had one foster child but three bedrooms, 
they would be subject to the bedroom tax; 
 

o No allowance was made under the regulations for a spare bedroom for use by a 
child staying overnight with a parent not living with that child.  Changes had been 
made to the Council’s housing allocations policy to account for this.  Under this, 
people could still apply for a two-bedroom property, but would have to take 
account of the implications of doing so; and 
 



 

 

o Although the Council was generally not building new properties now, some 
housing associations were.  Two bedroom properties were the most sought after, 
due to the new regulations. 

 
 
40. HOUSING ISSUES  
 
Chrissie Field, one of Leicester City Council’s Area Managers, advised the meeting 
that the Council was required to consult with tenants about how the Environmental 
and Communal Improvement Budget was used.  All residents were not consulted, as 
those not living in Council accommodation did not contribute to the fund. 

 
Thurncourt had been allocated an Environmental and Communal Improvement 
Budget of approximately £45,000 for 2013/14.  This was the same as had been 
awarded in 2012/13. 

 
Schemes from this budget for 2012/13 had been completed, as follows:- 
 

Internal plastering & 
painting of communal 
areas 

Willowbrook View 
maisonettes 

£5,434.15 

Internal plastering & 
painting of communal 
areas 

St Austell Road flats £5,980.00 

Upgrade of security 
door 

Dudley House  £4,800.00 

Fencing, paths and 
concrete step renewal 

Ocean Rd bungalows £28,709.93 

Total expenditure 2012/13 £44,924.08 

 
The work at Willowbrook View maisonettes had been slow to start, as issues relating 
to repairs being made from different budgets had to be resolved.  This necessitated 
visits to the maisonettes by various Council officers. 
 
As a result of consultation with tenants, the following preferences for use of the 
2013/14 budget had emerged:- 
 

To continue paths and 
concrete step renewal at 
other parts 

Ocean Rd bungalows £10,000 approx 

Featherboard fencing 
and security gate for 
security to bungalows 

Sextant Road £495 



 

 

6 x replacement 
benches  

Communal garden at 
Dudley House 

£1,800 

Painting of external 
metal handrails, as 
current rails splintered 
and covered in algae 

Dudley House £406 

Painting of 3 x external 
doors 

Dudley House £155 

Varnishing of cladding Dudley House £4049 (excluding 
scaffolding costs) 

Installation of a 6 piece 
outdoor multi-gym 

Thurncourt Road green 
space 

£28,000 

Approximate total proposed 

expenditure 2013/14 

£44,905 

 
The meeting noted that outdoor multi-gyms had been popular in other parts of the 
city.  No decision had yet been taken on exactly where the equipment would be 
located, but anyone interested could see equipment in action at the Open Day at 
Craven Park on 2 April 2013.  (This coincided with the family fun day.) 
 
If savings were made in this budget, additional benches would be provided in the 
area, although no decisions had been taken on exactly where they would be located.  
The Council now purchased benches made out of recycled plastic, which were 
vandal-proof.  These cost £300 each.  If any groups were interested in having the old 
benches, this could be discussed. 
 
It was suggested that Willowbrook Park was a suitable location for additional 
benches, but Chrissie Field explained that permission was needed from the Parks 
service for this and they had already indicated that there were enough benches in 
that Park.  However, she was willing to raise this with them again. 
 
If funding was approved for environmental and communal improvement work in 
2014/15, it was hoped that schemes would be agreed by December 2013, so that 
work on them could start in April 2014.  
 
A resident asked whether it would be possible to repair the fence around the 55th 
Scout Hut from this budget, as it stood on housing land.  Chrissie Field advised that 
the schemes to be undertaken were those that tenants had voted for this year.  On 
other occasions, fencing in disrepair had been repaired under another budget, but 
that at the Scout Hut could be considered for inclusion in next year’s list of proposals 
for consideration by the tenants. 
 



 

 

Chrissie Field also advised the meeting that a different budget was likely to fund 
£2,000 worth of bulbs to plant in open spaces in the ward.  It was hoped that this 
could be match-funded from other sources. 
 
 
41. HIGHWAYS ISSUES  
 
This item was deferred, as no officers were able to be present. 

 
 
42. CITY WARDEN UPDATE  
 
Charlotte Williams-Glover, City Warden, drew attention to the information on the City 
Warden service in the ward that had been tabled.  A copy of this is attached at the 
end of these minutes for information. 
 
Particular attention was drawn to the following points:- 
 

• It was hoped that monthly litter picks could be held.  The first, a joint litter pick 
with Thurnby Lodge schools, would be held on 10 April 2013; 
 

• The first Fixed Penalty Notice for littering in the ward had been issued for an 
offence in Thurncourt Road; 
 

• A prosecution for fly tipping was in progress.  It was hoped that this would be 
completed in the next few months; 
 

• One of the vans being monitored for the way it parked on Ocean Road / 
Thurncourt Road was a Council van.  The manager of the driver had been 
informed and agreement reached on a safer place to park the van; 
 

• All residents were invited to let the City Wardens know if any further parking 
issues arose; and 
 

• The City Wardens would be having an information stall at Thurnby Lodge 
Carnival. 

 
A resident advised the City Wardens that she had the agreement of her landlord for 
her large fence to be used by young people to paint on.  She was willing to fundraise 
to provide the materials for this.  The City Wardens undertook to consider this 
further.  
 
Residents raise concerns that, although dog fouling on the grass verges of Wendy 
Close and Nursery Road had been reported, the fouling was continuing.  The City 
Wardens advised the meeting that they monitored areas in which dog fouling was 
reported, but unless they saw the owner of the dog leaving waste, they could not 
take action.  They therefore asked that residents kept reporting all incidents. 
 
 



 

 

43. POLICE ISSUES UPDATE  
 
This item was deferred, as the Police were absent, dealing with an incident in the 
ward. 
 
 
44. WARD COMMUNITY BUDGET 2012/13  
 
It was noted that approximately £8,305 remained in the Ward Community Budget.   
 
The meeting was reminded that a grant of £1,750 had been approved to the 
Forgotten Estates Community Association towards establishing LE5 Boxercise, 
(minute 31, 28 January 2013 referred).  As this was half of the grant applied for, it 
also had been agreed that consideration would be given at this meeting to funding 
the remainder.   
 
Having considered the application, it was agreed that the remainder of the 
application should be supported and a further £1,750 awarded to the Forgotten 
Estates Community Association towards establishing LE5 Boxercise. 
 
Consideration was then given to the remaining applications.  It was noted that, as 
applications for funding totalling £13,372 had been received, (including that from the 
Forgotten Estates Community Association referred to above), grants would be 
awarded in the following amounts:- 
 

• Application 1 - 1st Thurnby Lodge Brownies (Assistance with rent) – No grant 
approved, as the application was for on-going costs 
 

• Application 2 - Tuesday and Friday Evening Bingo Clubs (Running costs and 
book costs) - £300 
 

• Application 3 - Mr T Taylor (Outing for the Tuesday (Seabroke) Club) - £500 
 

• Application 4 - Rowlatts Hill Allotment Society, Colchester Road site (Provision of 
a Chemical Toilet) - £760 
 

• Application 5 - Christ Church Parish Church (Family Friendly Seating Area in 
Church Building) - £450 
 

• Application 6 - Rosemary Goodman and Vinny Cooper (55th Community 
Gardens and Allotment) – no grant approved at this time as a breakdown of 
costs was required 
 

• Application 7 - Willowbrook Activity Centre (Boyzee Easter Activities for Half 
Term Break) - £475 
 

• Application 8 - Janice French and Kerry Woods (Easy Learning Music Club) - 
£300 
 



 

 

• Application 9 - Mike Pears, Team Leader Highway Asset Management, Leicester 
City Council (Installation of bollards outside Willowbrook Primary School at the 
Roborough Green school entrance) - £2,800 
 

• Application 10 - Nazira Vania, Development Officer, Community Safety Team, 
Leicester City Council (on behalf of local residents) – Lighting for the Footpath 
between the bottom of Colthurst Way and Thurncourt Road, crossing over 
Thurnby Brook - £874.93 
 

• Application 11 - Nazira Vania, Development Officer, Community Safety Team, 
Leicester City Council (on behalf of local residents) - Willowbrook Park Ball Court 
Lighting (to resolve anti-social behaviour concerns arising from the loss of the 
previous lighting, which was stolen approximately 18 months ago) – no grant 
approved at this time, due to lack of funds, but additional sources of funding to 
be sought and a further application submitted if needed. 

 
 
45. CLOSE OF MEETING  
 
The meeting closed at 7.38 pm 
 
 



Minute Item 42




	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

